
 
 
 
 
Draft Minutes – Richmond – No. Richmond – San Pablo Community Emissions Reduction Plan Community 
Steering Committee April 28, 2025 

 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
375 Beale Street, Suite 600 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Richmond – No. Richmond – San Pablo Community Emissions Reduction Plan Community 

Steering Committee 

April 28, 2025, 5:30 P.M 

 

1.​ CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL  

The Richmond – No. Richmond – San Pablo Community Emissions Reduction Plan 
Community Steering Committee (CSC or Committee) Co-Chair Marisol Cantu called the 
meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  

 

Present:​ Co-Chair Dr. Omoniyi Omotoso, Co-Chair Nancy Aguirre, Co-Chair 
Marisol Cantύ, Luna Angulo-Castro, Y’anad Burrell, Suzanne Coffee, 
Shaun Cotten, Beverly Dynes, Bryana Gastelum, Michelle Gomez 
Garcia, Kerry Guerin, Lizbeth Ibarra, Jessica Range, Simren Sandhu, 
Dave Severy, Derebew Shankute, Samir Shrestha, Althea Skinner, 
Heidi Swillinger, Ariel Xi, Sandra Castaneda (non-voting), Hakim 
Johnson (non-voting), Emily Warming (non-voting), BK White 
(non-voting) 

Absent:​ Martha Gruelle, Jeffrey Kilbreth 

Also Present:​ Air District Staff, Alex Sohn, Allison Kirk, Amy Smith, Brian Butler, 
Danny Fung, David Holstius, Eric Lara, Grace Leung, Janet Carrasco, 
Joseph Lapka, Joseph Palmer, Karissa White, Laura Cackette, 
Mausam Jamwal, Nina Garde, Robert Cave; MIG staff, Joey Nielsen; 
Interpreter, Norma Herrera; Members of the Public, Ed Giancometti, 
JGO, Tyra Norbye 

 

2.​ PUBLIC MEETING PROCEDURE  

Public Comments 

None. 

 

3.​ APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF March 24, 2025 

00:10:01 



 
 
 
 
 

The Committee reviewed the meeting agenda and approved the March 24, 2025, Meeting 
Minutes with a raised-hand vote.   

Committee Comments 

None. 

Staff Comments 

None. 

Committee Action 

Committee member Suzanne Coffee made a motion, seconded by Co-chair Dr. Omotoso, to 
approve the minutes of the March 24, 2025, meeting. The motion carried by the following vote 
of the Committee: 

AYES:​ Co-Chair Dr. Omoniyi Omotoso, Co-Chair Nancy Aguirre, Co-Chair Marisol 
Cantύ, Luna Angulo-Castro, Y’anad Burrell, Suzanne Coffee, Shaun Cotten, 
Beverly Dynes, Bryana Gastelum, Michelle Gomez Garcia, Kerry Guerin, Lizbeth 
Ibarra, Jessica Range, Simren Sandhu, Dave Severy, Derebew Shankute, Samir 
Shrestha, Althea Skinner, Heidi Swillinger, Ariel Xi 

NOES:​ None.  

ABSTAIN:​ None. 

ABSENT:​ Martha Gruelle, Jeffrey Kilbreth 

Public Comments 

None. 

 

4.​ JUST TRANSITION (JT) PLAN OF ACTION  

00:12:16 

The Path to Clean Air Steering Committee and the public received an update from committee 
members Luna Angulo-Castro and Samir Shrestha on the Just Transition Plan of Action.  

Committee Comment 

Committee member Y’anad Burrell asked about the previous times a community training or 
workshop was held there were not many participants from the community. She emphasized that 
the committee should spend time connecting and build a grassroots engagement process to bring 
community members into the discussion more effectively. She also asked if the committee could 
look at the RFP for partnering with consultants in the future and emphasized that the proposals 
should be provided to the steering committee well in advance to ensure that it contains the 
appropriate language and deliverables from the committee’s perspective. Finally, Y’anad asked 
about where future collateral design would come from and if that would come from the Air 
District.  

 



 
 
 
 
 

Committee member Heide Swillinger asked to be switched to the Just Transition Standing 
Committee from the Community Benefits Committee. 

Co-chair Dr. Omotoso let the committee know the goal was to get started on the community 
engagement process and begin planning the outreach while the final materials and plan was 
being developed.  

Committee Action 

Co-chair Dr. Omotoso made a motion, seconded by committee member Heidi Swillinger, to 
recommend the Community Steering Committee approve the Just Transition Standing 
Committee Plan of Action Proposal. The motion carried by the following vote of the Committee: 

AYES:​ Co-Chair Dr. Omoniyi Omotoso, Co-Chair Nancy Aguirre, Co-Chair Marisol 
Cantύ, Luna Angulo-Castro, Y’anad Burrell, Suzanne Coffee, Shaun Cotten, 
Beverly Dynes, Bryana Gastelum, Michelle Gomez Garcia, Kerry Guerin, Lizbeth 
Ibarra, Jessica Range, Simren Sandhu, Dave Severy, Derebew Shankute, Samir 
Shrestha, Althea Skinner, Heidi Swillinger, Ariel Xi 

NOES:​ None.  

ABSTAIN:​ None. 

ABSENT:​ Martha Gruelle, Jeffrey Kilbreth 

Public Comments 

None. 

 

5.​ FLARING FOUNDATION, CSC PERSPECTIVE, AND Q&A DISCUSSION 

00:27:07 

The Committee received an overview from Air District staff Danny Fung and Joseph Palmer 
on the Flaring Foundation and then a perspective of one of the CSC members Kerry Guerin. 
After the presentation the committee held a brief discussion  

Committee Comment 

Co-chair Dr. Omotoso asked about flaring rates in the Bay Area compared to the rest of the 
world and asked if the Air District was looking into how feasible it would be to end flaring 
completely. 

Air District staff Joseph Palmer responded by letting the committee know the safest and most 
effective method of disposing of the byproduct of the refineries was to burn it as cleanly as 
possible.  

Air District staff Danny Fung mentioned that from a compliance and enforcement standpoint, the 
Air District could only enforce the rules currently written, and in order to change that the Air 
District would have to look at the feasibility of ending flaring before being able to enforce that. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Committee member Derebew Shankute asked about combustion and the imperfections of the 
flaring process and asked if the Air District has thought about implementing ways to ensure 
perfect combustion in the flaring process? 

Air District staff Joseph Palmer responded by letting Derebew know that there were limitations 
in the velocity and pressure of the gasses being released in order to promote a better combustion 
rate. He also let the committee know that there were new software programs that were coming 
out that could also help to improve the efficiency of the flaring process and that Chevron had to 
implement a flare system to maximize the efficiency of the hydrocarbons being released during 
the flaring process. 

Committee member Heidi Swillinger asked for clarification on how Chevron has been recycling 
its flare minimization plan and asked Air District staff why this has continued for so long. 

Air District staff Danny Fung let the committee know that Kerry was correct and that the cost 
benefit analysis portion of the Flare Mitigation Plan has been recycled/reused and this was due to 
the way the Air District implemented its rule enforcement related to the cost/benefit analysis. He 
mentioned that the Air District would need to amend the rule as it currently stood in order to 
enforce the reuse of the FMP from Chevron and that was something that the Air District was 
currently doing. 

Committee member BK White asked that the Air District use the proper terminology between 
“Operators” and “Operations” and let the District know that they talk with operations and not 
individual operators. He also asked about equipment failures and how the Air District determines 
when and if it was an operator error and how that is done. 

Air District staff Joseph Palmer responded by letting BK know that they could chat offline to 
determine how the District uses its terminology and asked how the District could better 
communicate with operators and operations both.  

Committee member BK White followed up asking about the assist gas that was added to flares 
and why it is not automatically added yet.  

Air District staff Joseph Palmer responded by letting BK know that new software was being used 
to assist and optimize the gases that were added to the flares. 

Committee member Beverly Dynes asked if there had been any increase or decrease in 
unintentional flaring events? 

Air District staff Danny Fung let Beverly know he would have to get back to the committee with 
that data, but it was something that they had. 

Committee member Luna Angulo-Castro asked about the Flaring Minimization Plan and how 
often they are rejected or adopted on first draft. Luna asked how well the Air District felt the 
process was working in reducing flaring events and how the committee could feel confident in 
the process as is.  

Air District staff Joseph Palmer provided context about the history of the flaring minimization 
efforts that have been added with rule 12-11 and 12-12 and added that there is still work to be 
done to get to the next level and possibly add new rules. 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Air District staff Danny Fung let the committee know that the Air District had rejected at least 2 
FMP’s recently and added that the difficult part of the FMP process in regards to getting 
refineries to improve was the cost benefit analysis. He added that the Air District had limited 
teeth in its regulations to force refineries to improve.  

Committee member Y’anad Burrell mentioned that the health impacts of flaring event was not 
adequately acknowledged and emphasized by the Air District. She asked how the District could 
do a better job communicating the public health impacts of flaring events. 

Air District staff David Holstius added that any flaring event was a pollution event and the 
physical and mental health impacts were real and could impact sensitive groups even more.  

Committee member Suzanne Coffee asked for clarification on the infographic and the claim 
about flare reduction. 

Air District staff Joseph Palmer mentioned that just by asking the refineries what they were 
doing was enough to reduce flaring and with the addition of rule 12-12 there was even more 
pressure.  

Air District Danny Fung mentioned that he would have to check the source of the data and where 
that claim came from and follow up with the committee.  

Public Comment 

None.  

Committee Action 

None; receive and file. 

 

6.​ FLARING IN THE PTCA PLAN, ACTION IMPLEMENTATION, AND 
ENGAGEMENT DISCUSSION 

01:25:28 

The Path to Clean Air Steering Committee and the public received a presentation from Air 
District Staff Laura Cackette, Brian Butler and Robert Cave on the flaring action implementation 
and held a discussion with the CSC. 

Committee Comment 

Co-chair Dr. Omotoso asked about how the working group talked about compliance cost, but not 
public health costs and to factor that into decisions made.  

Air District staff Robert Cave asked for clarification on whether that would be a subject the 
technical working group would consider. He mentioned that it could definitely be something the 
working group could consider implementing in its discussions and that adding more members of 
the community into the discussion process would reveal further considerations for the working 
group.  

 



 
 
 
 
 

Air District staff Laura Cackette added that the fuel refining action 2.6 included a long list of 
ideas to minimize flaring and things to take into account from the community when the rule 
development and amendment process was started. 

Committee member Y’anad Burrell asked if the committee had a goal of what they wanted to see 
happen? 

Co-chair Marisol Cantu let Y’anad know that there was more language on this in the CERP and 
there were goals outlined in different sections. 

Committee member Jessica Range informed the committee she wanted to see the notes from the 
working group meetings and there could be report outs during the monthly CSC meetings to help 
bring the discussions back to the top of mind and keep the committee informed. She asked for a 
tracking process to keep record on how the working groups are actually addressing the concerns 
and giving the committee the ability to fill any gaps. 

Co-chair Nancy Aguirre reinforced the idea that Jessica brought up and asked that the committee 
remain vocal about staying in communication with local representatives to help move the 
implementation plan forward. She emphasized the need to have a community centered approach 
in engagement of the implementation plan. 

Committee member BK White mentioned that the continual struggle of the committee was 
communicating simply and effectively with the community. He reflected on the challenges in 
communicating the complex plans and ideas and the technicality of the content and emphasized 
the need to break down the topics into easily digestible bits to bring to the community. 

Co-chair Marisol Cantu discussed identifying the gaps in the working groups and asking working 
group committee members to begin identifying those gaps they see so the broader committee and 
co-leads could begin to address any issues or lack of representation with certain groups. She also 
offered support to the liaisons with their engagement process, understanding of the plan, and 
overall strategy and emphasized that the committee should all offer support to help the different 
liaisons. Marisol also expressed support for having a standing agenda item for working groups to 
report out and provide an overview of what they have been doing.  

Committee member Y’anad Burrell asked for clarification on the Contra Costa Health member 
on the technical working group committee and the frequency of the meetings.  

Co-chair Marisol Cantu emphasized that any working group should have a standing agenda item 
to report out during monthly CSC meetings. She also asked for clarification on rule 12-12 and 
12-11 amendment process and asked for information on how the committee would be included in 
the amendment process. 

Air District staff Victor Douglas informed the committee that they could participate in the 
regulatory development process on an ongoing basis and that the intent was not just for the Air 
District to provide reports to the committee, but to talk with each other throughout the process. 
He added that the Air District could provide report outs on the process during CSC meetings and 
that they hold public meetings to try and educate the public about the complex process and 
information. He added that there were many ways for the CSC to participate in the rule 
amendment process, including attending the meetings where the Air District would report to the 
board and other public meetings.  

 



 
 
 
 
 

Co-chair Marisol Cantu asked about the timeline for the amendment process.  

Air District staff Victor Douglas let the committee know the timeline was still “TBD” because it 
was a very complicated process that involved collaboration with many different groups and 
legislators.  

Committee member Dave Severy asked about the level of investment for the technical working 
group and if members of the public or labor groups would be compensated for their time. He also 
asked about the overall budget and if there were opportunities for the CSC to push/advocate for 
more funding. 

Air District staff Victor Douglas let Dave know that the Air District was looking at possible 
funds in order to provide stipends to members of the working groups outside the CSC members. 
He also emphasized that the CSC can advocate for additional funding opportunities to the extent 
they wanted to and the more advocacy the better.  

Committee member Kerry Guerin asked for more information on rule 6-5 and what the 
challenges might be ahead in regards to new restrictions in flaring and who found the rule 
controversial in the past.  

Air District staff Victor Douglas let the committee know the rule was very expensive and was the 
largest undertaking – cost wise – that the Air District had ever undertaken. He mentioned that 
several board members were being lobbied and even after adoption the Air District was being 
sued over the rule, so it was inherently political in nature.  

Committee Action 

None; receive and file. 

Public Comments 

None. 

 

7.​ TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 

02:04:46 

The May CSC meeting will be hybrid on May 19, 2025, at 5:30pm. The on-site location will be 
4114 Lakeside Dr, Richmond CA 94806 and a zoom link will be provided to the public and on 
the BAAQMD website for those who wish to join virtually.  

 

8.​ PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA MATTERS 

02:05:19 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3, Members of the public who wish to speak on 
matters not on the agenda for the meeting will have two minutes each to address the Committee. 

 

Public Comment 

 



 
 
 
 
 

None. 

 

9.​ ADJOURNMENT  

The Committee meeting was adjourned by Co-Chair Marisol Cantu at 7:32 pm. 
 

Minutes prepared by MIG, Inc., Consultants 

 


